
 
 
 
 
 

WELSH PERFINS – 1868 - 1880 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Joseph Sloper was given the go ahead to perforate stamps on March 13th 1868.  His office in the centre of 

the London business district gave him a ready source of customers and he advertised his services in the 

London newspapers on a regular basis.  However he seems to have ignored the potential customer base 

outside London.  So the use of perfins spread fairly slowly throughout Britain.   

 

The earliest use of perfins in Wales was probably made by William Cory & Son Ltd.  The company had 

offices in London so they would have been aware of the advantage of using perfins at an early stage.  

They used perfin die CORY/C and a cover is recorded used in Cardiff dated September 8th 1871 – over 

three years after the introduction of perfins.  The same die was also used in their London office and they 

may well have supplied stamps to the Bute Street, Cardiff office from the London office. 

 

The other die with early Welsh cancellations was CAM/RYS used by Cambrian Railways.  Although their 

head office was in Oswestry, Shropshire their rail network was throughout Wales and Aberyswith, 

Machynlleth, Portmadoc and Welshpool cancels are recorded. 

 

Probably the most prolific Welsh perfin user in this period was Pryce Jones Ltd based in Newtown.  The 

mail order service set up by Pryce Jones was the Amazon of it’s day.  Their warehouse was next to the 

newly built Newtown railway station and using the communication links provided by the railway they sent 

goods throughout Britain. 

 

Most of the Welsh perfin users were based in Cardiff and linked heavily with the shipping and coal 

industry.  A total of 36 dies have been identified as being used by Welsh companies during this period, 35 

of which are shown here. 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

CARDIFF 

 Die No. Die User Use Earliest Date 

1 B5480.01 BOVEY John Bovey & Co. Bute Docks, Cardiff 1874 – 1885 July 6th 1875 

2 B5490.01 BOV’Y John Bovey & Co. Bute Docks, Cardiff 1874 – 1875  

3 C0570.02 C.B/C Cross BrothersSt, Maty St. Cardiff 1879 – 1881 May 14th 1880 

4 C1280.01 CC/Co Cwmaman Coal Co, James St, Bute Docks 1874 – 1885 May 1874 

5 C5620.01 CORY/C William Cory & Son, Bute St, Cardiff 1869 – 1895 Sept. 8th 1871 

6 D2890.01 D.L.O David Lewis Owen, Bute St, Cardiff 1872 – 1875  

7 D3600.01 D.O/&/Co Daniel Owen & Co, Western Mail Buildings, Cardiff 1875 – 1895 …1879 

8 F3355.01 F.P/&S F. Primavesi & Sons, 6 James St. Docks, Cardiff 1873 – 1885 Apr. 16th 1878 

9 G2605.01 G.I/&S George Insole & Sons, 3 Bute Crescent, Cardiff 1875 – 1878  

10 H7680.01 H.W/C H. E. Worms, 10 Bute Crescent, Cardiff 1872 – 1905 June 27th 1872 

11 J5305.01 J.M/&Co. John Marychurch & Co, 9 Bute Crescent, Cardiff 1870 – 1885 Mar. 23rd 1880 

12 J8630.01 JW&S/C John Williams & Sons, 23 Queen Street, Cardiff 1875 – 1879 May 29th 1879 

13 L5700.01 LVS Lewis Vincent Sherley, Castle Street, Cardiff 1877 – 1879 Feb. 21st 1877 

14 M0220.01 MAIL Western Mail. 66-69 Mary St, Cardiff 1875 – 1895 …1877 

15 M5605.01 M.T/C Mathew Thompson, The Exchange, Docks, Cardiff 1875 – 1881 …1879 

16 M5935.01 MW Western Mail. 66-69 Mary St, Cardiff 1870 – 1890  

17 O2047.01 OWEN Daniel Owen & Co, 112 Bute Street, Cardiff 1873 – 1876  

18 R0615.01 R.B./&S R. Burton & Sons, Canal Wharf East, Cardiff 1879 – 1880  

19 W8310.01 WYE William Yeo Edwards, 105 Bute St Docks, Cardiff 1870 – 1890 Mar. 22nd 1895 

 



 
 
 
 
 

ABERYSTWITH / MACHYNLLETH / WELSHPOOL 

1 C0250.01 CAM/RYS Cambrian Railways, H/O Oswestry, Shropshire 1869 – 1883 July 21st 1871 

2 C6420.02 CR Cambrian Railways, H/O Oswestry, Shropshire 1878 – 1880 Feb. 10th 1880 

BANGOR 

1 E2060.01 E.H.V User unknown 1876 – 1879 1878 

LLANELLI 

1 T1477.01 T&E/L Thomas & Evans, Opposite Railway Station, Llanelli 1878 – 1880  

NEWPORT 

1 J3560.01a J.H/&Co G. W. Jones, Heard & Co, Lower Dock St, Newport 1874 – 1878 Nov. 25th 1878 

NEITH 

1 N0410.01 N.B.R Neith & Brecon Railway, Cadoxton Road, Neath 1873 – 1915 Jun.12th 1877 

NEWTOWN 

1 P2680.01 P.J/N.T Pryce Jones Ltd, Newtown, Monmouthshire 1880 – 1900 Oct. 21st 1898 

2 P2680.03 P.J/N.T Pryce Jones Ltd, Newtown, Monmouthshire 1880 – 1885 Oct. 19th 1880 

3 P2700.01 P.J./N.T. Pryce Jones Ltd, Newtown, Monmouthshire 1869 – 1881 July 17th 1875 

SWANSEA 

1 F3355.01 FP/&S F. Primavesi & Sons, 26 Castle Bailey St, Swansea 1875 – 1885 April 16th 1878 

2 F4487.01 F.W.R User unknown 1875 – 1885  

3 M3860.05 MM Marcus Moxham & Co, New Road, Swansea 1871 – 1877 …1876 

4 T5020.01 TW/&/Co Townshend Wood & Co, Eagle Wharf, Swansea 1873 – 1882 Oct. 15th 1875 

WREXHAM 

1 E3030.01 E.M.J Edward Meredith Jones, 12 Charles St, Wrexham 1875 – 1901 Nov. 12th 1901 

THROUGHOUT WALES 

1 G4350.01 GR/W Great Western Railway 1869 – 1872 Jan. 1st 1870 

2 G4350.01a GR/W Great Western Railway 1869 – 1870 Jan. 18th 1869 

3 G4350.02 GR/W Great Western Railway 1871 – 1885 Dec. 23rd 1871 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

  

 

Plate n/k  Plate 172 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1874 - 1885 
Usage  July 6th 1875 - December 27th 1878 
Manufacturer Unknown – probable single headed die 
Pins  14,10,9,10,8 – 4 
User John Bovey & Co Ltd, Rothesay Chambers, 

Bute Docks, Cardiff.   
Also 32 Mount Stuart Square, Cardiff 

Business Steamship Owners, Ship & Insurance 
Brokers, Coal Owners & Colliery Proprietors 

Cancellations Cardiff, Bute Docks, Gloucester Station 

B5480.01S 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

  

 

Plate 10  Plate 164 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1874 - 1875 
Usage  Unrecorded 
Manufacturer Sloper machine No. 2666 
Pins  14,10,9,2,8 – 4 
User John Bovey & Co Ltd, 

Rothesay Chambers, Bute Docks,  
Cardiff (provisional) 

Business Ship & Insurance Brokers 
Cancellations Bute Docks 

B5490.01 
 

John Bovey & Co - Steamship Owners, Ship & Insurance Brokers, Coal Owners & Colliery Proprietors. An entry dated 28/3/1874 in 
the Sloper records states "Small single initialling machine originally J&I/B&G repaired and altered to BOV'Y - Press No. 2666”  

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 131 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1869  - 1883 
Usage  September 14th 1871 – February 18th 1883 
Manufacturer Sloper Die – 6 x 1 die configuration 
Pins  8,10,15/12,8,10 – 4½ 
User Cambrian Railways,  

Head Office Oswestry, 
Shropshire 

Business Railway Operator 
Cancellations Oswestry, Welshpool, Aberystwith, 

Portmadoc, Whitchurch 
 

C0250.01M 
 

 

The Cambrian Railway was an amalgamation of lines by Act of Parliament 1864, 
1865, 1904 and 1913.  The Oswestry to Newtown line opened 1860 – 61, the 
Llandidloes to Newtown opened in 1859, the Newtown to Machylleth line 1863 – 64, 
the Aberystwyth to West Coast (Narrow Gauge) 1902.  The Company owned 241 
and leased 53 route miles of line. 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

CONFIGURATION OF DIE C0250.01 – CAM/RYS – 6 x 1 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Column A  Column B  Column C  Column D  Column E  Column F 
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129  192  172  131  197  106 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Die C0250.01M has been determined to have had a 6 x 1 configuration.  The key 
characteristic is a distinctive “R” found in the ‘F’, and ‘L’ columns.   
 
This distinctive “R” has been found on the following stamps. 
 
1d  106 (OL), 136 (BF), 155 (HF), 178 (GL), 184(KF), 195 (FF)

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Plate 14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1879 - 1881 
Usage  May 14th 1880 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  8,15/8 – 4½ 
User  Cross Brothers, 21, 22, 23 Working Street,  
  & 3 & 4 St. Mary St., Cardiff (provisional) 
Business General furnishing ironmongers, iron &  
  builders’ merchants, engineers & house furnishers 
Cancellations Cardiff 
 

C0570.02 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 Illustration  
not available 

Plate 201  Plate 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1874 - 1885 
Usage  September 1st 1885 
Manufacturer Sloper Die 4272 – Ordered May 1874 
  Fitted with a single headed die 
Pins  8,8/8,6 – 4½  
User Cwmaman Coal Co, Primavesi Chambers, 

James St, Bute Docks 
 Also 11 Oriental Place, Southampton 
Business Coal Proprietors  
Cancellations Bute Docks, Cardiff  

C1280.01S 

The first shafts of Shepherd's Pit were sunk in 1849 with coal being found in December of that year.  The colliery was founded by 
Thomas Shepherd in partnership with H. J. Evans, who later operated the colliery alone, until the Cwmaman Coal Company was 
formed to purchase the colliery in 1873.  Expansion followed with the opening of the Fforchwen pit in 1900 and the Trewen Pit 
between 1910 - 1912.  In 1918 the Cwmaman Coal Co. Ltd. sold their enterprise to D. R. Llewellyn, with further ownership changes 
occurring in 1928 and 1934 when it was owned by the Bwllfa and Cwmaman Coal Co. Ltd and Welsh Associated Collieries Ltd 
respectively.  When the colliery closed in 1935 it was under the control of the Powell Duffryn Associated Collieries 

 

 

Price list sent from Bute Docks by Cwmaman Coal Co to Seville bearing ½d blue with perfin CC/Co -  C1280.01 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

 

    

    Plate 12     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1877 - 1897 
Usage  March 1878 – March 2nd 1897 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  8,10,11,8 – 4 
User William Cory & Son, Commercial Road, Lambeth, 

London SE; 13 Coal Exchange, Lower Thames St EC; 
Tidal Basin, Victoria Docks, E and Millwall Docks E & 
barge building works, Charlton. (provisional) 

Business Coal Merchants 
Cancellations London SE, EC, Tower St. B.O. 
 C5600.04 

 

 

William Cory & Son Ltd. was formed in London in 1896 following the merger of eight companies in the coal trade.  Cory had 
a comprehensive business transporting and supplying 5 million tonnes of coal per year to customers in London.  The 
company had a fleet of 2,500 railway wagons and also operated barges on the River Thames.  So that the barges did not 
return empty after delivering coal, Cory used them to carry refuse from London to be dumped in the marshlands of Essex 
and Kent.  During the First World War, most of Cory's tugs were requisitioned for the Royal Navy.  The company lost fifteen 
ships, most confirmed sunk by enemy action.  In the Second World War fuel supplies were vital to the war effort.  Cory 
colliers sailed in coastal convoys and 13 of them were lost.  By the 1950s Cory was transporting and supplying fuel oil as 
well as coal.  In 1956 the company began to develop a fleet of barges designed specifically to carry refuse rather than coal. 
Cory had its own barge-building yard, which produced more than 400 such vessels between 1962 and 1972.  In 1972 
William Cory & Son Ltd. was acquired by Ocean Group plc.  By the end of the 1970s Cory was the largest waste carrier on 
the Thames.  In the 1980s Cory withdrew from coal and oil distribution altogether, to concentrate solely on waste transport 
and disposal.  In 1990 the company became Cory Environmental and currently operates in more than thirty locations in 
England, providing services in the collection, recycling and disposal of waste as well as municipal cleaning.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

  
Plate 19  Plate 123  Plate 1  Plate 14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1869 - 1895 
Usage  September 8th 1871 – February 12th 1891 
Manufacturer Sloper Die - multi-headed 
Pins  8,10,11,8/8 – 4 
User William Cory & Son Ltd, Bute St, Cardiff.  

London Office 3 Fenchurch Av, Lime St, London EC 
Business Colliery Proprietors, Ship Owners, Ship Brokers, & 

General Commission Agents 
Cancellations Bute Docks, Cardiff, London EC, Newcastle-on-Tyne 
Note  Broken pins in “O” & “C” indicated a multi-headed die 
 

C5620.01M 
 

William Cory & Son Ltd- John Cory, born in 1823 set up his first business in 1854 in Padstow when he bought his first ship.  
In 1872 Cory moved to Cardiff where the firm’s prosperity was built on the export of coal and the import of iron ore from 
Spain.  In 1885 his two sons came into formal partnership in the firm and in 1891 on the death of John Cory the eldest son 
became chairman of the company.  By 1898 the company owned twenty one ships and had moved to larger premises.  The 
company continues to trade up to the present day.  

Letter sheet posted from Cardiff September 13th 1875 bearing 1d plate 162 and 1½d plate 1  
both bearing perfin CORY/C – C5620.01 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Part advertising broad sheet to Algeria bearing 2 x ½d plate 6 dated February 14th 1872 

 

1872 wrapper to Gibraltar with GB QV 2d blue strip of three, single Plate 13 with perfin die CORY/C – C5620.01 postmarked 
CARDIFF duplex dated JU 14 72.  At this time the circled "S" handstamp to identify mail routed via Spain was not used (July 
1870 to July 1875) as the 8d rate alone was sufficient to identify mail received by the more expensive and thus uncommonly 

used overland route.  John Cory came to Cardiff as a shipbroker and shipowner in 1872 and established 'John Cory Sons & Co". 
On his death in 1891 he owned 21 steamers with another three large steamers being built on the Clyde. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Letter sheet to Naples used January 7th 1875 bearing 2d plate 14 (MF) with perfin die CORY/C - C5620.01 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

CONFIGURATION OF DIE C5620.01 – CORY/C – 6 x 1 
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181  202  136  154  187  200 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
139  209  204  201  177  157 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Die C5620.01M has been determined to have had a 6 x 1 configuration.  There are a 
number of broken pin varieties during the life of the die.  A key characteristic is a pin 
break in the second “C” found in the ‘C’, and ‘J’ columns.  This pin break has been found 
on the following stamps. 
 
½d   19 (LJ)  1d 176 (EC), 198 (IJ), 201 (JJ), 214 (SJ), 214 (OJ) 

A second key characteristic is a pin break in the “O” found in the ‘E’ and ‘K’ columns.  
This pin break has been found on the following stamps. 
 
1d 139 (PE), 143 (OK), 146 (CE), 151 (GK) 

A third key characteristic is a pin break in the “R” found in the ‘C’ and ‘I’ columns.   
This pin break has been found on the following stamps. 
 
1d 139 (FC), 161 (CC), 166 (MI)  2d   14 (AC) 

A fourth key characteristic is a pin break in the “Y” found in the ‘B’ and ‘H’ columns.   
This pin break has been found on the following stamps. 
 
1d 193 (HB), 198 (RH), 200 (KB), 209 (RH) 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1878 - 1880 
Usage  August 22nd 1880 – October 6th 1880 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  8,12 – 4½  
User Cambrian Railways, 

H/O Oswestry, Shropshire 
Business Railway Operator 
Cancellations Oswestry, Machynlleth 

C6420.02 

 

Cambrian Railways - Incorporated by Act of July 25th 1864, it comprised the following undertakings:- Oswestry & Newtown; 
Llanidloes & Newtown; Newtown & Machynlleth; Oswestry, Ellesmere & Whitchurch; Aberystwyth & Welsh Coast. The 
earliest incorporated of these companies was the Llandiloes & Newtown in August 1853.  Later Acts and powers included 
the amalgamation of the Mid Wales Railway from July 1st 1904 and the Vale of Rheidol from July 1st 1913.  On January 1st 
1923 it became part of the Great Western Railway.  

Waybill from Cambrian Railways for carriage of goods from Llwygwern Quarry used February 20th 1880  
bearing ½d red plate 10 with perfin die C6420.02 - C.R 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

Illustration  
not available 

Plate 12  Plate 164 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1872 - 1875 
Usage  Unrecorded 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  11,7,10 – 4½/4½/5 
User David Lewis Owen Ltd.,  
 87 Bute Street Docks,  
 Cardiff (provisional) 
Business Coal Owners, Merchants & Exporters 
Cancellations Bute Docks, Cardiff 

 
D2890.01 

 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 15 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1875 - 1895 
Usage  December 31st 1894 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  10,10/14/8,6 – 4½ 
User Daniel Owen & Co,  

Western Mail Buildings, Cardiff (provisional) 
Business Printers 
Cancellations Cardiff 
Note  Associated Die O2047.01 - OWEN 

D3600.01 
 

  

Founded in Cardiff in 1869 by the Marquess of Bute, the Western Mail was initially intended to be conservative in its orientation. 
The publication was daily; the price was 1d, and remained so until 1900. In 1877, Bute sold the paper to Henry Lascelles Carr and 
Daniel Owen.  Carr had been its editor since 1869, and, under his continued leadership, it became one of Wales's foremost 
newspapers. From its early days, the paper claimed to be the national newspaper of Wales. It covered all aspects of Welsh life. It 
sought to establish itself as the foremost paper, as it advertised in 1878 in Mitchell's Press Directory: "It has been established 
regardless of expense and over the wide area which it covers, circulates for more extensively than all the other papers put 
together."  In the later years of the nineteenth century, the main rival of the Western Mail was the South Wales Daily News, begun 
in 1872, which fought against the Tory influence as Liberals. Occasionally, the Western Mail made news of its own, such as when, 
in 1893, a fire destroyed the original building in St Mary's Street. The paper was the first to have a women's supplement.  Lascelles 
retired from the editorship in 1901, owing to ill health. The paper is still published today 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

 

    

    Plate 190     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1876 - 1879 
Usage  …1878 
Manufacturer Unknown – probable single headed die 
Pins  10,11,9 – 4½  
User  Unknown 
   
   
Business Unknown 
Cancellations Bangor (47) 

E2060.01S 

 

 

The ancient city of BANGOR is pleasantly situated at the entrance of the Menai Straits, in a valley in the midst of 
the rnost delightful and varied scenary in North Wales. It is a station on the Chester and Holyhead section of the 
London and North Western Railway, 59½ miles w. from Chester, 27 from Abergele, 14 s.w. from Conway, 18 from 
Llandudno, 6 from Bethesda, 9 from Penmaenmawr, 8½ from Carnarvon, 25 E. by s. from Holyhead, 14½ from 
Cape! Craig, 17 from Llanberis (via Carnarvon) and 242 N.W. from London.  The city of Bangor is of great antiquity 
a bishopric having been founded in the sixth century, there are no authentic records of its earlier history extant.  The 
city consists principally of one main thoroughfare, nearly a mile in length, containing excellent hotels and numerous 
well stocked retail establishments. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 

Illustration  
not available  

Plate 12  Plate 171 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1875 - 1901 
Usage  November 12th 1901 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  10,15,7 – 4½  
User Edward Meredith Jones,  
 12 Charles Street, 

Wrexham (provisional) 
Business Timber Merchants 
Cancellations Wrexham 

E3030.01 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Illustration  
not available 

Plate 19  Plate 201 

 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1873 - 1885 
Usage  April 16th 1878 - November 23rd 1878 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  8,11/14,13 – 4½ (III) 
User F. Primavesi & Sons, (provisional) 

26 Castle Bailey St, Swansea. 
Also 6 James St, Docks, Cardiff 

Business China Merchants 
Cancellations Bute Docks, Cardiff, Swansea 

 
F3355.01 

 

 

 

The Fedele Primavesi & Sons company was active from 1850 to 1915 with offices in Cardiff and in Swansea, Wales coastal towns 
and it was specialised in the transferware technique.  The transferware technique is a printing method for pottery, developed in 
England in the late 18th-century.  It was the engraving of a drawing on a copper plate which was inked to be transferred to a fabric.  
Then the design was transferred from the fabric to the ceramics in the ivory colour and then to the firing to fix the design.  
Characteristic of this procedure are ink smears that cause glitches in the design and soil the pottery. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 191 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1875 - 1878 
Usage  Unrecorded 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  12,9/15,13 – 5½ (III) 
User George Insole & Sons 

3 Bute Crescent, Cardiff (provisional) 
Business Colliery Owners 
Cancellations Bute Docks, Cardiff 

G2605.01 

 

 

 

George Insole was an English entrepreneur who built an extensive coal mining and shipping business in South Wales.   
A younger son of an English tenant farmer in Worcestershire, Insole made judicious use of significant financial assistance from his 
wider family to move to Cardiff, Wales, in 1828, to enter into partnership there as a brick, timber and coal merchant (1829–1830), 
and to become an independent coal producer and shipper in 1832.  He pioneered the introduction and early success of South 
Wales steam coal in the London and international markets and his coal contracts underpinned Lucy Thomas's reputation as "the 
mother of the Welsh steam coal trade".  Insole is claimed to have been the first to supply the London market (1830), the 
international market (Malta, 1831), and the Royal Navy (1831) with South Wales steam coal. Insole was for many years the largest 
shipper of steam coal at Cardiff. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  
Plate 4 (A)  Plate 119 (A)  Plate 13 (A) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1869 - 1872 
Usage  January 1st 1870 – … 1872 
Manufacturer Sloper – Multi-headed Die 6 x 1 
Pins  10,11,13 – 4/3 
User  Great Western Railway Co, 

H/O Paddington Terminus, London W 
Business Railway operator 
Cancellations London W, SE, N, Paddington, Reading, 

Manchester, Ireland, Dunkeld, Gloucester, 
Liverpool, Worcester, Wolverhampton 

Great Western Railway - Incorporated by Act 5 & 6 Wm. IV August 31st 1835 for a line from London to Bristol.  Originally 
constructed to Brunel’s Broad gauge, laid on longitudinal sleepers with cross-ties.  The first section opened from London to 
Maidenhead on June 4th 1838, and Bristol to Bath on August 30th 1840.  This undertaking which was remodelled by Acts of 
1867 and 1869 was constituted of the Great Western, the West Midland, the South Wales, the Bristol & Exeter and the 
South Devon.  Final conversion to standard gauge occurred in May 1892. 

 
G4350.01M 

 

Cover bearing 1d red plate 123 perfinned GR/W (G4350.01- “A”) and with the identity of  
Great Western Railway.  The cover was sent July 20th 1871. 



 
 
 
 
 

   
Welsh Cancellation found on G4350.01 

 
Stamps of the Great Western Railway are found used throughout  

their network in Wales, England and Ireland 

  

         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Aberdare 

(985) 
 Cardiff 

(162) 
 Neath 

(540) 
 Newport 

(561) 
 Neyland 

(C92) 

    

 

    

    Swansea  
(763) 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
Plate 92 (A)  Plate 12 (A) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1868 - 1870 
Usage  January 18th 1869 – July 29th 1869 
Manufacturer Sloper Die – 10mm gap between top letters 
Pins  10,11,16 – 4 
User Great Western Railway,  
 Head Office Paddington Station,  
 London W 
Business Railway Operator  
Cancellations London W, SE, Paddington, Dudley, 

Swansea, Neath  
G4350.01aM 

 

The three dies G4350.01aM, G4350.02M and G4350.03a can be distinguished by the spacing between the G and R. In 
addition the pins used in G4350.01aM and G4350.03a are smaller giving a light appearance to the die.  A theory has been 
proposed that Die G4350.01a was modified at a later date to form G4350.01M by the removal of the top pins of the W and the 
replacement of all the remaining pins with pins of larger diameter. This was done to enable more sheets of stamps to be 
perforated without the risk of clogging the fine pin holes or breaking the pins of G4350.01a.  However this proved to be 
unsuccessful as the resulting die was badly laid out and pins broke and holes merged to form very ragged strikes of the die. 

 



 
 
 
 
 

   
Welsh Cancellations 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  Cardiff 
(162) 

 Neath  
(540) 

 Ponttypool  
(951) 

  

    

 

    

    Swansea  
(763) 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

  
Plate 4  Plate 122  Plate 3  Plate 14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1871 - 1885 
Usage  December 23rd 1871 – December 29th 1881 
Manufacturer Confirmed Sloper Die – 6 x 1 configuration 
Pins  10,11,6 – 4 
User  Great Western Railway Co., 

H/O Paddington Terminus, London W 
Business Railway operator 
Cancellations Throughout the Great Western Region 
 

G4350.02M 

Registered envelope used Paddington April 8th 1879 bearing 2 x 2d plate 15 (EE/EF) with perfin GR/W – G4350.02. 

Great Western Railway - Incorporated by Act 5 & 6 Wm. IV August 31st 1835 for a line from London to Bristol.  Originally 
constructed to Brunel’s Broad gauge, laid on longitudinal sleepers with cross-ties.  The first section opened from London to 
Maidenhead on June 4th 1838, and Bristol to Bath on August 30th 1840.  This undertaking which was remodelled by Acts of 1867 
and 1869 was constituted of the Great Western, the West Midland, the South Wales, the Bristol & Exeter and the South Devon.  
Final conversion to standard gauge occurred in May 1892. 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

CONFIGURATION OF DIE G4350.02 – GR/W – 6 x 1 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Column A  Column B  Column C  Column D  Column E  Column F 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Column G  Column H  Column I  Column J  Column K  Column L 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
175  161  162  174  176  140 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
216  155  192  217  143  160 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

   
Cancellations 

 
Stamps of the Great Western Railway are found used  

throughout their network in Wales. 
 

  

         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Aberdare 

(985) 
 Bridgend 

(120) 
 Burry Port 

(E92) 
 Cardiff 

(162) 
 Llanelli 

(469) 
  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  Newport 
(561) 

 Pontypool 
(951) 

 Swansea 
(763) 

  

    

 

    

    Wrexham 
(924) 

    

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  
Plate 4  Plate 157  Plate 3  Plate 15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1872 - 1905 
Usage  June 27th 1872 – November 11th 1905 
Manufacturer Sloper Die 2868 – Ordered April 16th 1872 
  Fitted with a single headed die 
Pins  12,16/8 – 5 
User H(ypolite) E. Worms, 10 Bute Crescent, 

Cardiff – By 1881 Worms, Josse & Co. 
Business Coal Exporters &  

Merchants, Ship & Insurance Brokers 
Cancellations Bute Docks, Cardiff  
Note The same missing pin in the “W” after c1890 

confirms a single headed die  
 

H7680.01S 

 

 
Letter sheet used Cardiff August 2nd 1872 with 2 x 3d Rose plate 8 (QI/QJ) both with perfin die H.W/C – H7680.01. 

The die is identified as being used by H.E. Worms, Cardiff. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

  

 

Plate 13  Plate 174 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1874 - 1878 
Usage  November 25th 1878 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  7,12/14,8,4 – 4½ (III) 
User G. W. Jones, Heard & Co, 68/69 Lower Dock St, 
  Newport, Monmouthshire (provisional) 
Business Shipbrokers 
Cancellations Newport 
 

J3560.01a 
 

 

Cover posted from Newport to Bordeaux November 25th 1878 bearing 1d red plate 162 (IL)  
and 2½d Rose plate 12 (KL) both with perfin die J3560.01a – J.H/&Co 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 209 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1870 - 1885 
Usage  March 23rd 1880 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  8,15/14,8,6 – 4½  
User John Marychurch & Co, (provisional) 
 9 Bute Crescent, Cardiff  
  Later 1 James Street, Bute Docks, Cardiff 
Business Ship Owners 
Cancellations Bute Docks, Cardiff 

J5305.03 

 

 

 
The Pall Mall Gazette – April 6th 1876 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

  

 

Plate 10  Plate 140 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1875 - 1879 
Usage  May 29th 1879 
Manufacturer Unknown – probable single headed die 
Pins  8,15,14,13/8 – 5 (III) 
User John Williams & Son, 

23 Queen Street, Cardiff (provisional) 
Business Iron Founders & Steel Manufacturers 
Cancellations Cardiff 
 

J8630.01S 
 

 

 The business was founded in 1844 as an ironmonger’s shop by John Williams (?-1874) after he moved to Cardiff from 
Swansea.  Recognising the potential for expansion, John soon diversified from making nails, rivets, kitchen ranges and other 
household items to industrial iron founding, structural engineering and iron and steel stockholding, supplying ship repairers, 
contractors and engineers.  Originally based  in a small shop on Duke Street, the business subsequently moved several 
times, and by 1874 it was concentrated on Queen Street.  There it occupied six shops with extensive workshops and 
warehouses behind, opening on to what is now Kingsway.  When John died in 1874, his sons Lewis, John and Charles took 
over, although Lewis Williams (1842-1908) was left as the sole proprietor after the deaths of his brothers in 1876 and 1884.  
Lewis remained in charge of the business for 35 years until his death in 1909, during which time he expanded the business 
and became a prominent figure in Cardiff’s public affairs.  His son, Edward, joined him as a business partner in the 1890s.  
The business was floated in 1899, with John Williams and Sons becoming John Williams and Sons (Cardiff) Ltd., with Lewis 
and Edward as joint managing Directors.  As the business grew, additional premises were acquired on East Moors Road in 
1880, and it was there that the whole company relocated in 1917.   
 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 171 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1877 - 1879 
Usage  February 21st 1877 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  7,9,13 – 9½ 
User Lewis Vincent Sherley, Castle Street 
 Cardiff (provisional) -  
 partner of Luard & Sherley 
Business Solicitor to the Western Mail 
Cancellations Cardiff 

L5700.01 
 

 
Cover bearing 1d plate 140 with perfin LVS L5700.01 used February 21st 1877.   

The cover flap bearing the imprint of Western Mail, Cardiff.   
Why the initials LVS were used for this perfin is unclear, although one theory is that the perfin is the private perfin  

of Lewis Vincent Sherley, Plasnewydd, Roath who lived in Roath from 1871-1881 and was a solicitor at  
Luard & Sherley, Castle St, Cardiff, who acted as solicitors to the Marquis of Bute owner of the Western Mail. 

The Western Mail was founded in Cardiff in 1869 by John Crichton-Stuart, 3rd Marquis of Bute as a penny daily paper.  Lascelles 
Carr (1841-1902), editor since 1869, bought the paper with Daniel Owen in 1877.  Historically in South Wales the Western Mail has 
always been associated with its original owners, the coal and iron industrialists.  Often this led to the paper being regarded with a 
considerable degree of enmity, especially during the strikes in the coal industry of the 20th century.  This association between 
newspaper and its owner was so strong there is still a degree of distrust of the paper in South Wales. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

  

 

Plate 13  Plate 216 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1875 - 1895 
Usage  1877 – December 9th 1892 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  15,10/5,7 – 9  
User  Western Mail (& South Wales News) 

Proprietors: D L Owen,  
66, 67 & 69 St Mary St, Cardiff (provisional) 

Business Newspaper Proprietors 
Cancellations Cardiff 
 

M0220.01 

  

 

The Western Mail was founded in Cardiff in 1869 by John Crichton-Stuart, 3rd Marquess of Bute as a penny daily paper. Henry 
Lascelles Carr (1841–1902), editor since 1869, bought the paper with Daniel Owen in 1877.  Historically in South 
Wales the Western Mail has always been associated with its original owners, the coal and iron industrialists.  Often this led to the 
paper being regarded with a considerable degree of enmity, especially during the strikes in the coal industry of the 20th century.  
This association between newspaper and its owner was so strong there is still a degree of distrust of the paper in South Wales.   
In contrast, and particularly following devolution, the newspaper has adopted a populist, localist, pro-Wales stance, mainly in trying 
to find a Welsh focus on major news stories.  
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 166 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1871 - 1877 
Usage  … 1876 
Manufacturer Unknown – probable single headed die 
Pins  13,13 – 4½ 
User Marcus Moxham & Co, 
 New Road, Swansea (provisional) 
 Later Oystermouth Road, Swansea 
Business Timber Merchants 
Cancellations Swansea 

M3860.05 

 

The Moxham's moved to their family home,at Springfield House, Ffynone Estate, Swansea, in 1868.  The house, built in 
1864, was described as having nine bedrooms, a billiard room, a butler’s pantry and use of a paddock.   Marcus Moxham, a 
local timber merchant, then aged 32, and his family moved from nearby Richmond Villas to Springfield House; whilst here 
Mrs Moxham gave birth to four children.  Sadly, like many children born at this time, one daughter, Sarah, died in January 
1876, having only been born the previous May.  The 1871 Census, states that 15 people were living at the house; 11 of 
these are the Moxhams and their children, together with Marcus’ sister, sister-in-law and brother-in-law.  There were also 
four servants, a governess and three described as domestic servants. 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

  

 

Plate n/k  Plate 204 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1875 - 1881 
Usage  .... 1879 - November 29th 1881 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  15,7/8 – 4½  
User Mathew Thompson, (provisional) 

The Exchange, Docks, Cardff 
Business Ship Owner & Banker 
Cancellations Cardiff, Bute Docks 

M5605.01 
 

 
Notice from Western Mail February 12,1878 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

  
Plate 5  Plate 150 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1870 - 1890 
Usage  Unrecorded 
Manufacturer Possible Sloper Die 
Pins  80 – 14½  
User  Western Mail (& South Wales News) 

Proprietors: D L Owen,  
66, 67 & 69 St Mary St, Cardiff (provisional) 

Business Newspaper Proprietors 
Cancellations Cardiff 

M5935.01m 

 

 

The Western Mail describes itself as 
"the national newspaper of Wales" 
(originally "the national newspaper of 
Wales and Monmouthshire"), although 
it has a very limited circulation in North 
Wales. The paper was published in 
broadsheet format until 2004, when it 
became a compact. 

The Western Mail was founded in 
Cardiff in 1869 by John Crichton-
Stuart, 3rd Marquess of Bute as a 
penny daily paper. Lascelles Carr 
(1841-1902), editor since 1869, bought 
the paper with Daniel Owen in 1877. 
Historically in South Wales the 
Western Mail has always been 
associated with its original owners, the 
coal and iron industrialists. Often this 
led to the paper being regarded with a 
considerable degree of enmity, 
especially during the strikes in the coal 
industry of the 20th century. This 
association between newspaper and 
its owner was so strong there is still a 
degree of distrust of the paper in South 
Wales. 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 197 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Dates  1870 - 1876 
Usage  September 20th 1873 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  15.16.11 - 4 
User Mid Wales Railway (provisional) 
  75 Ethelburga House, London EC 
Business Railway Operator 
Cancellations Brecon (116), Bradford (107) 
Note  Evidence of a multi-headed die 

M6130.01M 

Cover used September 20th 1873 bearing 1d plate 187 with MWR perfin (Die M6130.01) 

 

 

Line from Llanidloes to Newbridge opened on 1st September 1864. Line taken over by Cambrian Railways in 1888. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Illustration  
not available 

Plate n/k  Plate 221 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1873 - 1915 
Usage  June 12th 1877 – August 1915 
Manufacturer Unknown – variations in the “R” point to a multi-headed die 
Pins  13,15,13 - 4½  
User  Neath & Brecon Railway, General Offices,  
  Cadoxton Road, Neath (John E Griffiths sec.)  
  17 Tokenhouse Road, London EC 
Business Railway Operator 
Cancellations Neath, Brecon, Hereford 
Note  Became part of the Great Western Railway 1st Jan. 1923 

 
N0410.01M 

Neath & Brecon Railway- Incorporated by Acts 25 & 26 Vic. of July 29th 1862 to construct a line from the Vale of Neath (9¼ miles) 
to certain collieries in Breconshire.  An extension to Brecon and other places (length 23¾ miles) was authorised in 1863.  By Act of 
July 29th 1864 authorisation was granted to extend the line to the Central Wales with two branches to collieries, length 15¼ miles.  
Arrangements were also made with the Central Wales, the Vale of Neath, the Brecon & Merthyr, and the Hereford, Hay & Brecon.  

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 174 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1873 - 1876 
Usage  Unrecorded 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  10,16,10,13 - 4½ 
User  Daniel Owen & Co, 112 Bute Street, 

Cardiff & Western Mail Building,  
66/67 St Mary Street (provisional) 

Business Printers & Stationers 
Cancellations Cardiff, Bute Docks 

O2047.01 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1880 - 1900 
Usage  October 19th 1880 – March 28th 1895 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  11,9/13,7 – 5 
User Pryce Jones Ltd, Newtown,  

Mongomeryshire 
Business Mail Order Firm 
Cancellations Newtown 

P2680.01 
 

 
 

 

 

Pryce Jones was born in 1834 in Newtown.  He 
became an apprentice to a local draper, took over 
the business and in 1859 started trading under his 
own name.  In 1861 he took advantage of the 
national postage service and began the first ever 
mail orderbusiness.  During the 1870s Pryce 
Jones took part in exhibitions all over the world, 
winning several medals and becoming 
worldfamous.  In 1879 he opened the Royal Welsh 
Warehouse and expanded his sales of flannel and 
clothes way beyond Newtown.  In the 1880s his 
patrons included the royal houses of Austria, 
Britain, Denmark, Germany, Hanover, Italy, Naples 
and Russia.  At the Jubilee of Queen Victoria in 
1887 he was knighted as Sir Pryce Pryce-Jones.  
He died in 1920 and was buried at the All Saints 
Church at Llanllwchaiarn, a church he had paid to 
build in 1890.  The Pryce Jones Company was 
taken over by other businesses during the 20th 
century but the two main buildings still stand proud 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  
Plate 12  Plate 3  Plate 15 

 

Pryce-Jones was born in Llanllwchaiarn, just 
outside Newtown, Montgomeryshire.  He was 
apprenticed to a local draper, John Davies, and 
took over Davies's business in 1856. In the same 
year he married Eleanor Rowley Morris of Newtown. 
Pryce-Jones started with his own little shop selling 
drapery just off Broad Street. Renamed the Royal 
Welsh Warehouse, the business flourished.  
Newtown had always had a woollen industry and it 
was the local Welsh flannel which formed the 
mainstay of Pryce-Jones' business. 
 
Post Office reforms and the arrival of the railways in 
Newtown helped turn the small rural concern into a 
global company. Pryce-Jones hit upon a unique 
method of selling his wares.  People would choose 
what they wanted from leaflets he sent out and the 
goods would then be dispatched by post and train.  

It was an ideal way of meeting the needs of customers in isolated rural locations who were either too busy or unable to get 
into Newtown to shop.  It was the world's first mail order business and it was to change the nature of retailing throughout the 
world. 
 
Several times, he was forced to re-locate to bigger premises.  In 1879, he built the Royal Welsh Warehouse, a tall red brick 
building in the centre of Newtown which still stands today and which remained home to a mail order company until 2011, 
albeit not the original Pryce-Jones company.  By 1880, he had more than 100,000 customers and his success was 
acknowledged by Queen Victoria in 1887 with a knighthood, when he became Sir Pryce Pryce-Jones.  He was also elected 
Member of Parliament for Montgomery from 1885 to 1886, and from 1892 to 1895.  In 1891, Pryce-Jones became the High 
Sheriff of Montgomeryshire.  Pryce-Jones died in 1920 at the age of 85.  The company he had built up over decades was hit 
badly by the depression of the 1920s and 1930s, being taken over by a Liverpool company in 1938. 

 
 
 
 

Dates  1880 - 1885 
Usage  May 3rd 1881 – March 31st 1882 
Manufacturer Unknown – evidence of multi-headed die 
Pins  11,9/13,7 – 5 
User Pryce Jones Ltd,  
 Station Road, Newtown,  

Montgomeryshire (provisional) 
Business Mail Order Firm 
Cancellations Newtown 

 
P2680.03M 

 
Pryce Jones Warehouse c1890 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  Plate 205  Plate 3  Plate 15   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1871 - 1879 
Usage  July 7th 1875 - August 7th 1875 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  11,9/14,7 – 5½ - probable single headed die 
User  Pryce Jones  Ltd, 

Newtown,  
Monmouthshire (provisional) 

Business Wholesale & Retail Drapers 
Cancellations Newtown 

 
P2700.01S 

Pryce Jones - Newtown – Pryce Jones was born in 1834 and at the age of 12 was apprenticed to 
a draper, John Davies.  At the age of 21 he ran this business when Davies was away  After his 
return in 1859 Pryce Jones left to run his own business just off Broad Street in Newtown.  From 
1861 he had “Pryce Jones” stalls at all the leading national and international exhibitions in Europe, 
America and Australia.  One of the earliest and most popular patrons of Pryce Jones was Florence 
Nightingale.  In 1866 Queen Victoria sent her first order to Pryce Jones.  His first warehouse was 
at the Cross but by 1879 this was becoming too small and he had the “Royal Welsh Warehouse” 
built opposite the railway which had been completed in 1864.  He was knighted in 1887 and 
became Sir Pryce Pryce-Jones.  He died at the age of 85 on January 11th 1920.  

 

 

Front sent from Newtown to Rhyl used July 17th 1875 bearing 1d plate 134 (LK)  
with perfin P.J./N.T. – P2700.01 



 
 
 
 
 

CONFIGURATION OF DIE P2700.01 – P.J./N.T. – 1 x 1 
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165  199  195  206  195  195 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
158  220  209  175  215  202 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

All copies seen show two closely 
spaced pins in the loop of the “P” 
which points to this being a single 
headed die. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 220 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1879 - 1880 
Usage  Unrecorded 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  13,14/15,13 - 5½ (IIIa) 
User R. Burton & Sons, Canal Wharf East, Cardiff 

& 17 Welsh back, Bristol (provisional) 
 offices: Canal Wharf East  
Business Carriers (water) 
Cancellations Cardiff and 50x 
 

R0615.01 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 134 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1878  - 1880 
Usage  Unrecorded 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  7,5,10,7 – 5 
User Thomas & Evans,  
 Opposite Great Western Railway Station,  
 Llanelli (provisional) 
Business Wholesale Grocers & Corn Merchants 
Cancellations Llanelli 

 

 
T1477.01 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 180 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dates  1873 - 1882 
Usage  October 15th 1875 – November 11th 1881 
Manufacturer Unknown 
Pins  8,17/14/8,6 – 4½ (III) 
User  Townshend Wood & Co,  

Eagle Wharf, Strand, Swansea. 
Works Briton Ferry 

Business Iron Merchants & Tin Plate Manufacturers 
Cancellations Swansea 
 

T5020.01 

 

Townshend Wood died in 1871, but the business continued operating under the same name by Townshend Wood’s son, 
Thomas Travers Wood.  However the company filed for bankruptcy in December 1882. 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Plate 212 

 
 

Dates  1877 - 1890 
Usage  Unrecorded 
Manufacturer Unknown – probable single headed die 
Pins  15,7,10 – 5½ 
User William Y(eo) Edwards, 105 Bute St, Docks, 

Cardiff (provisional) 
Home 5 Woodfield Place, Roath 

Business Commission agents, coal exporters, ship brokers 
  and agents for Elliott's Patent Sheathing & Metal Co. 
Cancellations Bute Docks, Cardiff 

W8310.01S 
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